
INTERVIEHEE: L<\RRY ITi:iPIJ:: (TAPE :(,1:3) 

INTE!~\'IEi·JEP' : JOE B. I:T'-"~i;-rZ 

June 26, 1970 

F: 	 This is in tc:rvie\·; nu .. 'JC~r three ,;]i th tir. Larry Temple in his Austin office, 

June 2 1970. The interviewer is Joe D. Frantz. 

, let's start today with some of your spring--"rhat \'le could call --

crises, 	al s07C.e of them aren It. But tell De ,.]hatever you k.t10\.J about 

s and the d2cisio'l not to run again. 

T: 	 Well, I recall, Joe, that after the President made the decision that he 

television on M2rch 31--nnd really discuss the war was the 

subjec:: '2~:::::r GV2'!:'yone kneH about--Cl;d I was awong those \"ho only lene,., 

about t;i.c.;:. I,;;::,> no privy to the car.ly decision-making process of coming 

to the ~"c siGn net to seek reelection. But I recall that the dis-

cussion -~:(l~iv~ to the decision to stop the bombins, the very aspects 

of the c', t~le v<:irious 'N;:;,Y that the speech took effect, \-lent through 

many pr s. I kIte: that he had asked ILJ.rry Hcpllerson to be the 

coordir "' __ pu cti:-~f; to the speech. By do that, Harry obviously 

'Has in ",:--: -(':~:: cor:vec:;ation and 'iiOdcing ,·,ith Clarl~ Clifford and \-lith 

Secret:::.. ~~lt Ro tow, and I think that during the process that 

GeorgE! , c:::;:~::; in and out a" it. 

By lying to the bedroom every morning as I did, I came in contact 

with the speech because by-and-large the various drafts were went to the 

President as his night reading. When I would arrive there in the morning 

the speech would be uppermost on his mind. I know that on occasion, for  
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eX2.,;~?l(;, held ho.nu the speech to Hrs. Johnson there in his bedroom and 

say; in effec t; "Bird, ",hat do you think about this?" 

F: Hm.J long in advance did he start that speech? You might say five years 

in advance, in one sense, but--

T: By recollection is about three ,veeks. It could have been four, but roughly 

three '-lecks. 

F: So there's a lot of time to whittle and hone. 

T: That's right. And you'll recall that, at least the aftermath accounts 

indicate they uere r.,a:.1Y cont~:c:ts Oll t in the field ,vith General Abra.-ns. 

The military leo.ders were all contacted. The Joint Chiefs of Scaff were 

co"tacted. ThiG speech tODk many forr:ls 'tvith many revisions. I think 

that, if I am correct in the Hay I Has reading the Pres idcnt at tIw time; 

he '·las using the drafts of the speech to make up his mind \vhat he \.:'as 

going to do. It Hasn't 11 matter that he had made up his mind and he 't-ms 

trying to formalize it vcrhally uith a spe.ech. I think he 'Has using 

the draft of the speech ZlS the vehicle by ,.;Thich he made up his nind "Jhat 

he was going to do. 

F: Did he hav~; in Zl sense, t,·m speeches running concurrently, or 'Has it 

jus t the shift back and forth '\vithin the speech? 

T: No, it was just _the speech. It wasn't as if Secretary Rusk would come 

up \·]i t~, one draft e<nd Secretary Clifford. and then General Abrams, or 

anyoClc else. Here coming up various urafts. The one draft ahrays funneled 

th::.-ou:.;h Harry }:cI'herson ~·;ho H3.S doin:::; the bulk of the drafting Hork on 

it. I:'11Ose ideas '\}(:mt into it I fr:mkly don't know because I wasn't there 

d n r i : l~; !.: 11 e c; r i t i.n g proc e s s . 

r: personally was known to be somewhat--I hate these labels, but 

•:;CPV i.e} UBRARY r:. 
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they Ire conVt::l L(~nt--morc dovish than the Presic;£:nt on Vi.et Nam. Hould 

the filet thilt Ibrry is handling the speech be any indicator? 

T: No, not at all. You'll have to remember that Harry McPherson had been 

with lyn:1on Johr.son longer than anyone on the \-Thite House staff. He hed 

been ,.;ith hin since the late '50's iVhen he \Vas in the Senate. 

F: I rcr'.l~ze he could separilte Harry HcPherson the person from Lyndon Johnson I s 

speech :;ri t2r. 

T: Right. 13u= the President had a lot of confidence in Harry Hcfherson and 

in his abi.lity to be able to assGr:'.ble the vie,vs of the various people 

and pu _ t i ,:;:, on p2per. He kneu that Harry uas a good speech wr;. tel'. 

So I think he looked to Harry because Harry was a good speech writer 

:~ C~ articulate the ~ ~ious views that might be assc~Gled 

togetlY "'ho fact thr: he mi be more dovish with regard to the war, 

or wie ::d to tr.2 bombing than Ros tou, 'Has really of no significance. 

If tha c:::: sed c:Lc President's T:'lind, he certainly did71't indic:te it 

verbal-" 

F: He ~ms ~~~ for the best speech writer for this purpose. 

T: Righ t. III rerEember that Ealt and the others "Tho people at thu.t 

time th ~.'e:-c. a little more havkish contributed. Every White 

House IT. - ,:'.ny,\7:ly, '·1as attended by all sides, all vie,vs. Of course> 

this time that the President had other people come into the 

\-Ihite H ,:,'C ::lleir vic,;!s--the Dcan Achesons and the others that 

he call. I was just on the of that. Other people 

can tel I '\vas there 

ir. the 
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But, in :lily event, that speech started taking effect and started 

being process As I sc~y, my vieH is that he Has using the various 

dr~:fts of speech tn come to his own decision and come to his own 

conclusions a.bout \·lha.t he ought to do. I don't think that \>lhen he first 

d(.cie, <1 to ma.ke the speech he kne\<1 exa.ctly what he ,.]ould say in that 

speech, and exactly what impact it would have. It was only toward the 

L!nd the.t he did l;;,:ke the decision that he ought to pull back on the bombing 

and ,.]anted to make that announcer::",nt. 

F: Did you see that for",ing in your morning conferences, or '\-lere you in 

doul): 'ight up till the l2.st? 

T: I thii'k my thought ,ut tl;,'.t is only by hindsight. I don't think I \>7aS 

~.. L :~~ing {' 'l:ing the process > t~·rell--" 

F: Yo' ,;ere- just thinking of ivh<l.t had to be done. 

T: Right. I was more interested at that time in the mechanics because quite 

frequently he v:ould look at a d~ .'.it of a speech and he i-lould try calling 

Harry, and Earry '\]Quld be on his i,Jay to work--,JOuld neither be at home 

nor at the office--and he ,.]ould say, "Larry, take this speech dOlm to 

Harry, and tell him A, B, C, D, E." I would relay those messages. I was 

more a courier of inforr:ration rather than having any impact or having 

anything to contribute to the speech. That \>7as not my area. He kne'H 

it ,·Jas not my area. I knc"J it "laS not my area. 

F: This is a minor point but of interest. Most of you came to work in White 

House cars "7hich, of course, had r;:;ciios. Did the President in tha.t period 

when you were somewhere between home and the White House utilize that 

service much, 0:: diG h tend to Hilit until you lighted somc,tlhcre before 

Ii ;;ot in tC~lcli \:ith you? 
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T: Very infrc:ic2ently did he use that. I think maybe if it '.Jere a critic;cl 

matter, he would. 

F: Of COllrse it vlould"lt be too private. 

T: Th<~t ~v::s the point I ,ya~: going to mak:e. The thing you h3.':: to remer:::~:r 

is that if I'm in a White House car and he calls me, our op.versation 

blares O~lt over tn' radio to the other people in the cars and to thcs e 

that arc at the b; 0 of 01' rations of the motor pool. So ~~ would not want 

to call Ho.rry McPL.et'son, for cxample, and disc;',:8 the details of the 

speech ,,;ith him over the radio b:'2L!.Use it was just not sGmething he wanted 

a lot ~f people knowing about. 

F: He'd only talk about something fairly innocuous like, "Harry, you ought 

,to go St.:tt:!'cr before you come in," or St.·:' tlling? 

be her n ~ifteen minut~s? Well, I'm going over to the Pentagon. lnlY 

don't: :::cur .:tne". IT0C::L: 1.,(: over therc?'--that sort of thing. But as 

far as .:tny convcrs;:"tions that Hent into substance, very seldon 

did he) ::;:3.t. 

, I S['"~'7 that speech to,} effect and I, like almost everybody 

else, T: ,c, the view that it was just going to relate to Vietnam--and 

only to Vietnam. ""-'''. I rerr,(?nber that on Sat 'r-day, Narch 30, the Presice.nt 

held a ", ",(~ ?r::::ss conference out on the la,vn in the Rose; Carden. I 

ve:ry '.;1211 because I \"ont to my daughter's school and fIe" 

a kite with her that morning, and he had called my office, apparently 

just t, ~)2 at th. press co=tferenc2. I got there just as the 

t' I~ ~ ..... 4-
...JL."":"LL an2 it was a very, very relx:c~ ~ituatic~. 

I'd sa 
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anytL:'2 durin; the sprin:;, uhi ell obvi.ously gave no clue as to ~vhat \Vas 

forthcordng thc ne:,:t do.y. All he vJa."1tC(l to tell the pn~ss was that; 

"I'm going to have this show tomorrow night, and I hope you'll be watching, 

and I think I'll have something of interest for you." And that was about 

the upshot of it. 

F: 	 He didn't £;,7e any real intir;1:1tion of \ihG.l: he'd hav,;? 

T: 	 iole 11, he did indicate that it \wuld be about the Hal', but that's all. 

F: 	 But not his stand? 

T: 	 Not at all--no indic,tion about it. Then the next day, I waS at horne 

on Sunday, and thel.'. ,-lere tho,,'.? that "ere at the White House. I knew 

Georg" ,'1<1S dmm there, for eXiJ.'J':ple--George Christ-ior " He and I, as I 

indic ;···"~d to you e::.rl ;. just lived a block apart. I knew th~lt he had 

gr:.' dOHn \Q the White House to help work on the ffi( :~1.ics for this speech,-

ane! I had not been involved on helping llith the mec~_c_idcs so I was just 

at hoICe:.. 

In the middla of the afternoon, Marvin Watson called me, and said, 

"The President would like for you to come down here. He has got something 

he wants you to do." So I went down to the White House and got there, oh, 

maybe between four and five o'clock, 

F: 	 Just you? Not your ~ife? 

T: 	 Just me. And was advised at that time that the President had decided that 

he '..JDuld not seek reelectinn, and that \/as included in the speech. I 

sa" the draft of the speech. It obviously came as a good deal of surprise 

to rr:e. I irr:mediately rClr.cmbercd the conversation I had had with John 

Connally the:. previc s tem:K:r ",hen he told me that was a possibility and 

I 	 't-had tocally J~scountecl 1. i..~ • 	 f the speech and ~·Ias 
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told at that time that only l'larvin and Geoq:;c Christi.:m and I had copies 

of tl :Lt, and th:1t only one of the Signal Corps people uho ,.;'ere helping 

to p: ': it on the teleprOii}ter had a copy of it; and tlk'1.t was not widely 

disse:::inated among the people--

F: So tIle n::mttl"der of the S:mday staff just ,.;rent ahead Hi th usual routine) 

'.1.'; That's correct. Shortly thereafter, Barefoot Sanders came down to the 

Hhi te House. Hh2.t the President said iJaS that he ~:ant8d Barefoot and 

Harvin and rr;.::; to call various people during the speech t~ advise them 

g to do--his announcer.ent that he HaS'1' t going to run. 

Barefc.':C:, Dt:.',-:'o'..);:;ly, in cha;.'ge of Congrc5siO!'.al liaison, was calF; :; the 

varic'l::; :; of Congi:'css--the l~ey leau8rs, none of ,it- .;::\ kneiv ;;.t this 

point. 

F: The ic " ~)e the Johnson courtesy that a reporter doe~. :.: call Nik,. 

talkiE 

T: :1, the rresident knew that most of tho people that were going 

to be C::l~lcd 't70uld be i·mtching the progra-a, but he Hanted them to knm'l 

ahead t':':;c. Harvin ,vas calling various political leaders around the 

countr~' .' '/.J.ri.ous people impu~t<l!1t to the President from; political 

standpoint. And I was assigned the responsibility of calling all the 

Cabine 

F: None o. 

T: None o· ., Clifford. ~vhor:l the Pr:;sidcnt had 

talked Secreteu:,y Rusk \<JQS on au airpl<l:lQ going Qc.ro:.s 

the At 
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probably was going to do this. You'll recall also that--

F: Did you ge t in touch "li th Rusk? 

T: No, I did not, although I guess tecbnicully it was possible. Rusk and 

Clifford '\vere eliminuted from my list. Everybody else was on the list, 

all the other CabD~t people. 

Hhen I first found out ubout it, my first reaction '\vas that it was 

a very unuise decision--one that I didn't think should be made. I \Vas 

concel'ned abou t '·iho could be, and Hould be the Pres iden t beginning in 

January '69. I thir,k one of my first thought;: '\vas that there was no 

Democrat that '-las capable of \.]inning, other than Lyndon Johnson. 

Th~ Prcsid::-.:-t :.;ent back from his office to the Mansion right after 

he tl,ld me abcut th.~s and shm:d lTEO the copy. He didn't tarry to engage 

in discussion. He didn I t say, "lIve decided not to run; '\'lhat do you 

think. II It '\vas r;-,o:;.::e of a telling r.:e Hhat he \'las going to do and asking 

that I call the n,eCDers of the Cabinet. 

\{:len he left to go back 'ivith Hrs. Johnson to the Nansion--there really 

is a s(> L: of freshening up process--George Christian and I had a very 

extended discussion. Gcorge told me that he had knovn about this for a 

fe,v days, and he thought it "\Vas the right deciSion. He didn't have any 

doubt about it. I told him at that time that I didn't have aliY doubt about 

it, but that I thought it Has the ,·,rong deciSion. He and I engaged in 

a pretty extensive convers.2.ticn as to the merits. I don't think he 

convinced me oE the correctness or it, although I later, within a few 

duys, ca:n(~ to the conclusion that I thought it ,ms the right decision, but 

my first rcncti.o:l \;~1.s to the: cont-c,::l:!::'Y. 

F: Dill UlC la: c duci:--I kw),·; hml th(; l'l.:csLdent disliked thnt \-Jord--but did the 
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lame duck an 1 perturb you? 

T: It pcrt~rbed me so~~, but I thi~~ the principal thing that concerned me 

was I couldn't really envision anybody else lead~~3 this country as 

Presidc':t. None of the people that \'icre on the scene, Hhich of course 

at that tir.:c included Senator Robert Kcnr.cdy and Vice President Humphrey--

I had net reckoned really with Senator McCarthy as being a force although 

this \,;a::; after Ne':J Haopshire--

F: He st:'..ll seer::c:d morc of a diversion than a reality. 

T: Right~ But th'lt ,vas really ",hat concerned me. I later decided th~lt I 

did tL~::--,l( it ;'7as the. correct deciSion, but my first rC:1.ction '.Jas to 

the cc:.:::cc~r~'. 

What the President said was that this was the language that he planned 

to go ,·,ith, and this '.las the. that he planned to give on 

televi ~an--that he would not seek d he \lould not accept his party's 

nomim:.~:'c [0;:' Elnotl,er te.rr:1, but that he' die no t llant any of us to start 

calliL' T1t.:'..l t.he television bro::tdcast started. 

F: you just a lot of ti~2 to get hold of everyone, did it? 

T: No, no' 2t 211. I think he lw.d deci<.~ed th;:lt "ilaS ,;.;hat he "las going to do, 

and he :..c: thinl: it I"as a firr.; d8cis:lon in his m-JD mind. But Lyndon 

,·)1-"0 ahvo.ys ';-Jants th2 so-called option, and he ';'lanted 

the op .~ :-:, ct12i! ;:-,g his Dind ;:lbouc it--1:1:1),be not changing hi.s mind 

about c: \; QS or wo.sn' t ll; to seek anothc;r terr.;--but chcmging 

his mi" ",.," ~:;lC:l. o.nd Hhere 8.nd 110-,' be c,i:;ht iT!3.kc that announcemc:nt. 

So he '. _ 
,r-: .,..-, r-

"" _ .. , l.... fo:.-c:c::'osc 2ny ;,the:::: options until be actually startcc! 

on tJ~c L ",::''10 bc:cn even as l2.te as nine o'clock, 

Hashi.n ~'C: ':..;:::bcr tbc.:rc ':-Jc:rc; several hours 
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involved there- after I hnd gottc.:n to tlw Hhi teo House. 

I do recnll that ns soon as the Prc·.ident left to go back to the 

Hansion and I'd had my discussion '\vith George, that I called mY'vife to 

tell her that above all else--I know she'd planned to watch the te1ecast--

but I surely ,..rante,1 her to ivatch it in any event. I didn't give her 

any insight as to what was going to happen, but I thought it was important 

that she watch. That was about all that transpired during that several 

hour period. 

F: Do you make preliminary c2.lls to C2.binet people just to get them located, 

tell them to stand by, the mlite Hou::e was going to call, or anything 

like that? 

T: No, i'le didn't in this event. 

F: Or do you just pick up and hope? 

T: Right. 

F: Did you have any trouble getting off the phone from ar,y of them so you 

could get on to so~conc else? 

T: ~:o, the b st difficulty was getting them on the phone. 

F: Oh, they i·lQuldn' t leave the TV se t? 

T: Right. They were home '\vatching television, and, of course, I think 

their inclination '1!as, '~<l(:ll, let IT'.C just finish watching this television 

program, then I'll talk to them. tl l.Jhat I told the ",bite House operator, 

the calls for me, ,·las to call and get them to the phone 

and tell them thnt I was calling at the special request of the President--

that the President knc\y and I kne;,·; that they Hcrc \vatching the telecast, 

out: I had a r.'C:SS8.t;C that 11'-' \7.:mtcd I"C! to gc:t to them thr:n during the. 

te lccas t. felid I called all of the Cabinc t mc:nbcrs, QS I say, save and 
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except for Sccrct2ry R~sk and Secretary Clifford. 

F: Hhat ;(i.l~d of rC<lC :::ions did you get? 

T: Shocked. And surprised. I don't think any member of th~ Cabinet that 

I talked to, and by the way I talked to Arthur Goldberg, too--the Presi-

dent added him to the list. He obviously wasn't a Cabinet member,. but 

as the ex .::cpresento.tive he son:etir.:1es sat \vith and met \vith the C.:Joinet. 

But tLc;y ,Jere all very surpirsed. I think the shod;. took various forms. 

F: ~~d a~:body argue ~ith you? 

T: No. I recall the 1.,::;':1 \vho ace :,ted it most mattc:!:-of-faetly ~'las Larry 

OlnrL enough. Larry just said in effect, ~Qh, is that 

right. Thank you for calling." On the other hand, you had people like 

Wilbur Cohen who said, "Oh, no! No, that can't be right! Surely that's 

not r:·~~t~il I thi<~ everyone gei:1eral was surprised and shocked. 'l-;nat 

I did was to take notes with regard to my conversations, because without 

the President having told me I knew he would be interested in the reactions. 

I pene '. :. 1 cl()~,:n t:l 58 vG.~ioLtS notes about the reactions, and ir.::r:ecliate l~/' 

upon t- :~cl;.tsior; of the calls, I dictated to my secretary 1-7ho ;;{as dOHn 

there t:: ..lt.: tiDe::;. ",emo ,-1Lth the renctions oE all the members of the 

Cabine. ,,' { th.Ln t~:eE minutes after the telecast, he had that. 

It was sort of interesting--the transformation that night, in addi-

tion to the other transformations--of the activity around the White House. 

I t ..las ~clv ~-'iet and lack2daisical prior to the speech. TIlere 

weren't many people around there. Obviously, there were no staff members 

except 

there 
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,v"s soing to happen and Hha.t the Pres idcnt was goine to say, There ,.;ere  

fe\" others down there. Everyone \-JaS at home ready to Hatch and see the  

te lecas t and hear \,11 t iv'as going to happen about the lV'ar.  

I ~vould say that within a matter of minutes after the telecast the  

switchboard was just buzzing. All of a sudden people started showing  

up. It was at thts point maybe ten o'clock at night. All of a sudden  

White House staff members who were at somebody's home watching the tele-

cast started coming dmm. Nmv the people from just out of the blue--

obviously people that had access to the White House, because you don't  

just \lalk tnto the White House--but I remember tha t in the President I s  

oval office, in Marvin's office adjoining it, and in my office, there  

were maybe four or five people prior to the telecast who were not tech-

nicians, They were the technical people who ,vere doing the TV work in  

the President's office. nut by eleven o'clock there ,.Jere probably forty  

or fifty people, and all of a sudden it became a grel:!t beehive of activity.  

There were just a lot of people around. The President, of course, sub-

sequently went over to the Mansion and held an impromptu press conference.  

F: 	 Now he enjoys surprises. I presuDe, in that sense, he got a stimulation 

out of it. 

T: 	 I guess so. It \-las not visible that he did. But I ,,]Quld say that there 

,vas a greater appearance of relief than joy. That was also true tvith 

regard to Mrs, Johnson, by the way. You could sort of see a lot of tired-

ness leave her f2.ce after that. The President in a very, very relaxed 

mood again met the press over in the Hansion maybe some thirty minutes 

after the: telecast. He \,]3.5 in goou form, relaxed, with the tvinking and 

jc:;ilin;:; or the pl~es:::; corps, nnd obviou:;ly satisfied and hapfY ~vith his 

{(, 

CCPY UlJ USRARY ( 
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decision, and convinced th;J.t it 1-1[;<; tlI' correct decision. 

F: Did YGU get an equivalent outpouring of le~tcrs and telegra~s then? 

T: Yes. As ~ matter of fact, the President was unable to answer all of the 

telephone call: he got. He got many, many cal~s from many people, not 

all lir:;itcl' to the De80cratic party. [He received] calls from people 

like Govcrno::- Rockefeller, I recall very well, [\-Iho] callecl him to say 

that he didn't knO';·; what Hent into the decision anJ Hhy the President 

did it, but that the President was still his PreSident, and he, Governor 

Rockef~ller, supported that decision and that President--as ~ell as the 

many c2.lls C1"ClC you expect f\'om Congressional leadr-rs and other people 

around ccu;'tr',T. Obviously, th~ President \'2.S unable to t['.ke all the 

calls; e':c,. that night, b; midnight or so, Hires ;:;tarted coning in. 

F: ression of the staff that this did, at le&st in a domestic 

sense,''-'·~'':.':hcn hi:::: hand in conducting foreign policy? That is, it 

from h~ving political motives? 

T: Yes, s :;;ir:k tho.t I s right. That i,as pal' of thl2 motivation for his 

decisic~. I kn~J that he felt very keenly about the fact that this 

might be .. -. cat.: 'st to end the i,'ar. This I',i be what could end the 

i'Jar) tc ~;ut of Vietnam, to get peace talks started. I knm'l he 

felt vc~'-- about that because for several days following the 

speech, about nIl he talkl2d about. I didn't have that 

convers. ':h hin prior to the spe<.:cb bGcaose I didn't knmv about it. 

But I L· ~':...: .. Drnings in the beclruon thClt' S Hhat be ilould talk about 

it. tf;'.~ 2:.!1 T t S .:-l Y t 11 .::l t 1 r r:~ t to do this for political 

motiva doing whatever is necessary, one, 

to . .,L.li..... ', 
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our boys over there al'\v3ys i.]as UP:)Cn:l0St in his mind. I recall he made 

a decision either late, late the night of the speech or early the next 

morning to go tv Chicago on the morning of April 1. 

F: This was a sudden decision--the overt part of it was sudd0n? 

T: Well, it was something he'd sort of been holding in abeyance. I believe it was 

the National Association of Broadc3sters. Ilm not clear in my mind about 

that--

F: He amplified a little bit from the March 31 speech; he enlarged a little 

on what was said there. 

T: Correct. He decided that he would go out there. I think part of his 

decision to go out there was to sort of get a feel for ~hat reaction there 

was to his decision. I think he believ, '. that the National Association 

of 13ro"dcasters would probably give him as much a feel as he caul·";' get 

fro::l any group. I re ,-_all that ear ly the next morning ~'7e got on his air-

plane and headed toward Chicago. I do also recall that he got a tremen-

dous reception from the people around the hotel who'd gotten word that 

he ,Jas coming--the throngs that shml7ed up, as \vell as the people in this 

very large hall that Here attending the meeting of the National Associa-

tion of Broadcasters. 

I also remember that on the way to and returning from Chicago the 

President kept \vanting to stay in contact ,'lith the tfuite House to see 

what kind of reaction was coming into the White House. Lyndon Johnson is 

a man who is interested in reactions. He ahlays has been \vhether it IS 

talking about some domestic le£;islntion, or whatever. Once he has done 

something, he wants to know what the rcnction to it or response is. 

Oin'lous n decision Llw_t Has ns m.:J.jor as this one, he Has interested in. 
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I rcn:cr.,ocr iJC m;}int:.:incd consto.nt conto.ct through the radio on the airplane 

buck t the :"li te HO,lSC to see Here the:: ivin~s coming in at the rate of 

a hundr2d an hour, or were they coming in at the rate of ten thousand an 

hour. I don't remember what the answer to that was, but it was very heavy 

I do recall; and Hhat seemed to be the tenor of them; that sort o£ thing. 

F: You sp(:["c: of Gover;--:.or Rocb::fellcr .3.",111.112 ago. I spent an evening in 

mid-to-late April '68 in the White House. I stepped on the elevator to 

go to rr.y :-oom and r.,et Governor Rockefeller and his ivife and you. Later 

you toh: not to mention what I'd run in to. 

T: I must ely, joe, I I d £or;;otten about that. 

F: \\fas the::- aEY S ,u:,c:e in that? 

T: None at 211. The President was very, very fond of Governor Rockefeller 

and Hrs. ckofeller--I say the President, the President and Mrs. Johnsen. 

I'm saL. f~ecl frDc my contacts "7ith Gover;cor Rockefeller, '\.;hich i'7C~re f<::.irly 

limited, t that was a very mutual and reciprocal feel 

Hh0.':: :,~cl tr::::lspired th2.t pm.-ticular evening ~'?3.s that Governor Rocke-

fe llc-c '., __ n tavn, anu the PreSident, liking Governor Rockefeller, wanted 

him to C(~:::~ b=, and h2.'.'c dinner with him. He had lw.d the conversntion 

'\vi th GO\' Roc~efeller. The Governor said he'd be delighted to have 

dinner. ~2 ~3S a little secrecy to the mechanism of getting him in 

and out, 'J('CC::l'"se tl:e President dicln I t "ant anybody to knmv about it 

and thir.'" ... ):a·'J allY politic:ll ir:.;'J!.lct, because it had nonc. It Has purely 

social. 

F: The spec 

T: L:;J.ctly. :1(; \:.1.:, trytn; to t~llk to Governor r~ocke[cller abaue 

gc,tting :'nurll recall thLs vas h~[nre Governor 
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Rockefeller got back into the r.J.ce o.[tcr he had gotten out for the 

Republican nomination. And whether the President was for Governor Rocke-

feller vis-à-vis Vice President Humphrey, or the Democratic nominee--

F: The speculation would have been trcDendous. 

T: Right. The President just didn't ,·nnt to get into that, and it ,vas purely 

social, so ,ve \-lent through the sccre:tive proceeding of the Governor 

coming to see me. He came in not the back or the front part of the 

\\fhi te House, but came j n the west door of the Hest '{-ling, and came in to 

see rne. I took the Governor and Mrs. Rockefeller over and up the elevator 

to the second floor. It was on to avoid misconstruction of the visit--

purely social. 

F: You ,,,ere around, of course, and you didn't have much time to savor the 

reaction from the March 31 speech when Martin Luther King was shot down 

in Hemphis. h'hat uas your role i::l. th,," midst of this? This ,·m:.: follO'.Jed 

of course, by the April riot. 

T: Well, it varied. You will recall that at the time of the Martin Luther 

King assassination the Presici"nt ';,::1S scheduled to go to Ha,vaii. 

F: Hrs. 10hnson uas entertaining foreign editors down in this part of the 

world. 

T: Right. The President ,Jas going to Eac::aii, as I recall, to meet President 

Park of South Korea; and, as a m2.tter of fact, was to leave that evening. 

My recollection is not good as to ",hether he was going to come to 

Texas and spend n,"" ni8ht and then go on--the mechanics and procedures 

are not clear in my mind. But I do recall that George Christian already 

E~lse. Sane of our peop-Lc tLat ,'t.':t'c t;ving Hcrc already dt the airplanl2 

. :CPV i.e) UBf<ARY :~' 
i 
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rcnuy to leave. Tklt' s hOI? in::rr.inc:;-;t the: departure ""as. 

Just as an J.side, the HJ.Y this u5u<.:1J.y Horked is th.:::.t it's obviously 

quicker to go by helicopter to Andrcus than it is to dri\'c, and those that 

were nat going by helicopter usually left early. Some of uS who waited 

with the President rode on the helicopter, and He 1;·1ere there Hntil the 

last minute. 

In any eve::t Hhen 1;.;ord first car:1e in of the l·jartin Luther King 

shoot , the first ,-lOrd was that he had beon shot, Hithout any indica-

tion t~L!t--

F: 	 Who delivers a message like that--just whoever is on duty or whoever 

hears it, and then it would come into the Situation Room. 

T: 	 I thin i:: would co;~e into the Sl.l.uJ.tion Room i;hcther sor;,,-· ne'JSlr.c:n 

called ~"'~:e Chr:'stian, and George told the Presiclr"nt, or whether it 

came tl~. t~'L Situation Room for Walt, I don't recall in that parti-

A:: t:;e tir::e Hord Ca!712 in, it uas JC3 t that he had been shot, witho:..:t 

regard - =~~ er:'ousness of it, and obviously without regard to 

circums''::cl:-.CC;s--otiler thLln he 'el heen shot, Hhc:ther the man had been 

apprehc~ co Dr wh~ther it was a sniper was not clear bt first. I remember 

the Prc.,:,,_ L. i S first reaction I'ms that be Hanted to hold up the trip 

ally only for a matter of hours to see what the condition 

Has, bL;::~:,::: clic:::,'t knm·/ the seriousness of it. But until ,.;re did 

detenn~ ~ :::'.~L)c:s:·[ess of it, unti.l he elid have all the facts, he 

up. 	 He didn't want to be on an airplane 

going ::~ 	 CC:;::~:~:.~iC2t Lon.s on 1\1.1' Force Onc Clr'(~ 

jw;t 	$1" 
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White House. 

Of cmll.-sc, it vas only shortly thereafter. that word came that by the 

time he had gotten to tll hospital, or shortly thereaft~: ) that he was 

dead. Then the President made the decision that under the circumstances, 

he ,,,auld delay, at least for that night, his trip to Hm·laii. Th~ reason 

I say at least for that night is because President Park ha.d not left 

South Korea yet, but the President--as great an impact as he knew Martin 

Luther King's death would have, he didn't Hant to cause a foreign crisis 

of any kir.d by sort-of rejecting the Pre:sident of South Korea by neg-

lecting him or failing to show up. Obviously, that later 'vas taken care 

of and smoothed over by just delaying the trip by several ,veeks. 

F: It was a little ticklish. Since Martin Luther King has no official 

position in this country, hOH rr,uch importance do you attach to him. That 

is, how do you ex?lain to a foreign dignitary that, in a sense, he outranks 

him? 

T: That's correct, au-a. I think that's what was going through the President's 

mind even though he may not have articulated it quite that way. The 

President decided very quickly, after word reached us thl:: Martin Luther 

King had died. It seems to me like it \Vas dark \vhen it happened, so it 

seems to me like it was 8:30 or 9 o'clock at night, I'm not really sure--

F: I got the Hord here--I uas attending a banquet, and somebody came in late 
) 

about 7:30, and said that heel happened. I don't think they said he \vas 

dead, jus t shot at Tn t point, so I think it 'vas around 6 :30 when he vIas 

first shot, which in April would have been 7:30 in Washington and therc-

fore get ting c 1.05e to Q.J.rl:. 

,. Jt Has (>:30 here, (Ed yo~! S'::!)'? lin sure that wust be about right. 
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F: 6 :30 in Memphis. 

T: The President immediately decided that it was appropriate and maybe for 

the sake of sort of soothing this country for him to make son_ statement, 

and that was the unanimous advice of those with whom he discussed the 

subject. A stater.lent \l7as put together. I really don't have any clear 

recollection as to who wrote it, but it seems to me like Harry McPherson 

came in and the President said, "I want to say, A,B,C,D,E. I ~v"ant it 

to be short; I want it to be to the point. Here's ivhat I Hant to say. II 

Hhich is usually the '.Jay he did this. Somebody else may have actually 

ivritte:1 it, but the thoughts and the ideas usually i·1ere Lyndon Johnson's. 

F: There ,:Co the poi:' ~s he Hacted to mnke. 

T: That's ri t. It be somebody else's words to put in form of thC! 

substa: of what he wanted to say. I recall thnt--maybe it was not 

quite dLr~, it seems like ot was--because I recall that he w~nt on the 

steps r~ ou: ide of his offi~e--the steps leading down to the Rose 

Garden- that I '.:here he made the vcry brief speech. Obviously there 

was a lot of technicelities that held to be ivorked out very quickly that 

fell ,·]i:.:hia Gcot':.:c. 1 s realm of getting all three ncbJOrks to get a uniforill 

camera-'-ur'.2 :::a~cra that feeds to all three of them, that sort of thing. 

F: Hml7 SOc:1 C~::l he ;jC:t set up on so:nething like that? 

minutes. - :=:lke8 c,,)hile to put the statemen.t in ~.!Ords, so it \·!Orked 

:~, ::llti,ough I rC'r:~c.:r,:ber the President's impatience because he 

He typical was iD?atient when 

he Has 

T1: ',:ere very difficult, <lnd kind-of 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



20 

surprisin2 and shocking times. You r 11 recall thnt the riots and the 

fires started in lJashingtol1. And I remember my mm surp:ise to be able 

to stand on the steps of the \~hite House and see fires blazing. I th0ugnt 

it was som~thing I'd never see in this country--just within eyesight of 

the ~mitc House, and smoke everJ'\vhere. 

F: Did the President ever go look? 

T: Yes. 

F: From the second floor? 

T: Fran the second floor. You could look out the lV"indO\.;r. I don It thinlc 

he ever tooL the step out to the frout steps of the lmite Housc as 

I diL) and out in hont of the Hest Hing as I did. You just cOtlld 

literally see the flames shooting in the air. I recall that coming and 

going to the Hhi te House in the cars that it became necc:'sary to line the 

waIls around the White House with military. Here these soldiers are, and 

I say soldic:::s ,.;rithout any memory as to whether they ",'ere Army or Narine 

or Navy or whatever, but to see these soldiers ,.;rith fixed bayonets and 

,-ii th the hard hats almost as if you ,-Jere in a 'war zone some'-There. It 

really is a very frightening feeling--not that I felt unsafe, not that 

I ,-ias concerned that somebody iVa:: going to throw a rock or shoot a gun 

or light a fire ,.]here I ,.;ras. I was a little concerned about my family, 

but the riots never spread over into Virginia. They were really centralized 

there in Washington. 

F: There was a certain portent though that must have hung over the White 

House. 

T: ni There \l{lS; and irruo:ediately the ne:-:t morning I started meeting, 

al(n~~ IJith SO;11e otll(:r pe~ 21e in the Hllite lIouse, "'ith the people l'lho 
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'vould opcr:ltc the city of lvashington in the event th:lt martial law ,'ms 

decl~red and troops ~-lere c:llled out. One was the Under Secretary of the 

Army, ,.]ho ~.Jas really in charge of the various troops. The Deputy 

Attorney General 1;.Jas iJ~\'olved--

F: mlO ~vas that--Harren Christoph;;::r:? 

T: Harren Christopher; and Dave McGiffert (?)--1 believe is the fellovl's n.3.n:e 

with the Secretary of the Army, I believe he Has General Counsel for the 

Army thcn--,,~as ovcr there ,-lith rega:r:d to the availability and the 

stationing of troops. Clearly, Nayor \valter \,)'ashin;:"on "las still the 

governing authority in t~ie District of Columbia. 

F: The President \-larked rath~r uell ~.]ith Washington, didn't he? 

T: Very well. The President's very fond of Washington. Washington was well 

liked, (l:~d I guess still is, in the city of Washington by the people. 

AlthouZh dOc)' t elect their fL,ayor--h:c r S appointed by the President--

I think he clear was at that time the consensus choice of the people. 

Had there been an election and if anybody had been foolhardy enough to 

run against him, he would have been elected. He was the recognized 

leader of the people. 

I \,;:13 involved because the President ~vas looking to me to handle 

whatever technical legal details were requisite for him to callout the 

militar:;' tha,c became a necess2.ry step, as it did. This \'laS not <!-n 

area tvitil ,chich I 1,':'1S familiar, but I talked \vith people at the Depart-

ment of .Tus t~ ::e, partly to the At torney General, primarily ,,:i th Warren 

ty Attorney General. The various forms were pulled 

out tha ::, c:cl cuc,ng the DetL-oit riots in '67 \:hen I u,::;n't there. 

F: They morc kl\'C <:l modus o,K·r2.:lc'i for this-- they don't have to go to 

the book' 
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T: That's right. But you really Ha:lt to go back to the books to confirm 

the correctness of Hhat you're doing. There are really t,vo orders that 

the President needs to sign. One ~_s the order tln.: he has been advised 

by the local authorities that the situation has gotlen to the point they 

can't handle it. There's a lot of legalese that says that, but that's 

the net effect of it. Therefore, he is declaring martial law. That's 

the first order. The second order is tha' he is calling out the troops. 

He is federalizing the force to go in. Just as a hyper technical point, 

it's important ",hich he signs first. You can't just put in front of him 

and say, "Here are blO documents you need to sigr; "because as a purely 

technical matter--" 

F: He has got to get C'. situ2tion l~r. i-ore he can--

T: Right. He needs to sign the ordc,' saying that the situation is out of 

hand and declaring martial laH before he does the second, b('cause the 

statute required it in that point. I guess had he wunted to, he could 

have signed the f; rst one to dechce martial laH and waited a day or two 

to federalize the troops. But the situation just Houldn't permit that. 

You don r t really uant to declare martial la,·j until you have to, and you 

don't really have to until you're prepared to send the troops in. As 

a political nutter, you ~vouldn r t want to declare martial lm-] jus t: to 

be declaring it. 

F: On SO',':2 thing like this, is there a lot of scurrying in the l.J'hi te House 

s taf£, or do most of the people go on ~vith their regular duties, and there '5 

just a small sort of cQdre uho comr.lUnicate uith the President on this? 

T: TIw latter. \';'e 11 , I guess [to] all of that the ansucr is "yes. " By 

and lart;e, I think most people ~';o on \-lith their duties. They're concerned 
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about it. They're interested. But as far as having a direct contact 

with it, tlk)' don't, and they ju;";t go about their business. 

In this particular instan-~e I recall very clearly that the ordc~s 

were sig;:-,2d by the President sitting in the Hest Sitting HaH on the 
. 

second floor of the }fansion late in the afternoon. He uasn't in his 

office. He had been over th8re and had eaten lunch late, and the situation 

had just gotten to the point that the orders had to be signed, and so 

he signed them over there. I reCt'.ll that he called me and told me to 

bring them over there. I got over there and there were several people--

I don't even recall who was there--Marvin Watson, George Christian. 

I took the orders over there, and he did sign the.;1. Of course, George 

imrr.ediately rcleas(;d the inforr:Eltion to the nCHS media. 

The President awaited the one further conversation with Walter 

Washington. I remember he was vcry frustrated because he couldn't get 

Walter or. the phone. Walter was touring the area. The Prcsident wanted 

to have one last conversation with him to be sure what the situation was 

before he signed the orders declaring martial law and calling out the 

troops. He couldn't get Mayor Washington on the phone for some fifteen 

minutes. It IJ<lsn J t a protracted period of tir_,;, but it seemed ltke a lengthy 

period of tin~e. 

I also recall that, at the time--it seems to me that it was prior to 

the response from Hanoi about the peace talks--and the Presidcnt got Cy 

Vance to come down from New York to sort of oversee the military 

opt.:!rati.ons i;l \.'~lshington. Cy h.::.tl dc·r:c th<.lt in Detroit in 1967. An 

office :1_,::::1 h n se t up [01- Cy in the r·.:;nta;;on. He ,'las sort of the Prcsi-

dent I S c:.::r.;""::-:u;C: tel' the situ:' ti.on in ,-.';!:;;'.incrton 
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because the Presidci~t valwd his experience. It ,\.]asn' t a matter of not 

having confidence in the other people, but a lot of the other people had 

not been in Det::wit. He valued Cy's experipnce and Cyts judgment. 

F: There ~vasn' t any contention betL'cen Hayor \-]:1.shington and the President 

regarding the necessity for martial laH? 

T: Not at all. My recollection is that there was no one who recommended 

against what the President did. At that point with the fires burning, 

the people having been shot at, with massive looting going on in Washing-

ton, I think it ~.:as the unJ.uinous thought that it Has imperative that 

sonething be dun:.:::. The police forCE! "cas incapable of handling the 

situation in i-lashi.ngto:!. 

F: DO~5 l'!le Presid,~nt stay pretty deliberate in this sort of Situation, or 

i:.: he likely to gi.ve out with sort of an impatience that things are 

going aHry--or one Hay or another "shoot the sons-of-bitches ll attitude? 

T: No. The thing about Lyndon Johnson that I think those thn.t have seen 

hir:l knO\-1 is that he's al"Jays ir:lpati8nt. In the calmest of times, he 

is inpatient. He "lants action to be going. He wants something to be 

happening. Dut I Hould say th2.t at a time of real crisis, I believe 

I'd rather have him making the decisions for mc than anybody I ever 

kne,v. Because Hhen everything else is critical and people are inclin.:!d 

to be ups~t or to be enational or to be irritated, to be impatient, to 

be unhappy, he is able to either call from a reserve he has got--a 

reservoir of Some :<ind, I don' t kno~; vlhat--bu t he is ab Ie to maintain 

calii1 and a p~r!t:hoclic;:l ability to 1\o.k<.: decisions. I think he's an 

strate, that at a tir.:L' of crisis. 

. COllY tiJJ UBRARy~r;. 
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F: He's Eot st&mpedcd into decisions. 

T: Hot at all. 

F: Did you ever have aDy opportunity to obs~~vc his personal relationship 

with Martin Luther King? 

T: No. I do recall that he hr:..d had conversations uith King during the 

time I was there. You'll recall that Martin Luther King had, at least 

fro~ ~~e pu~lic standpoint, init ~tcd th~ idee of Resurrection City. 

",hat &')out.: Res~ ,~'r:ction City; ,·,hat happE' no;·]. I think that because 

of the: othe~' a~' ;vities that Dr. King h2.·j been involved in that there 

,.,ere a lot of peop!'; that ,.Jere not overly concerned abL'ut Resurre.t:ion 

City c.,; "'::; he; HilS in co:·.trol; that he r,i !:: be able to, or probably 

would ';;, :lb l.: to, pr"vc:~ t il,lY violcnce, prevent :lny destruction, prevent 

any Pl',;;) lc:-,s . Bu t ,Ji th Dr. King gone> of course Ralph Al.K<·nathy at 

that time was a total unknown quantity to people generally--I'm not 

,,,1.., '"' .... 
'-!-~<-~- the President did~!t know hin, or didn't knOH romething 

about ,:.Llr., :,ut h:: ,JaS an unknmm quantity as to his ability to lead the 

people:. -::-::crc ,-las a considerable ar::ount of discussion about Resurrectio'1 

City. s t 1:8 federal gove::-n::::ent do? Hm., does it react about 

Resurr ".; ? 

F: You've ki;:.d of a cr of uncertain quality that i5--

T: An uncertain quantity, too, at this point, by the way. 

F: --that :":;;:-1.:,. Do you try to do .::mythint::; to delay it or to head it 

off, o:~ 

T: \Jell, ' 
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being mnde. The Attorney General, Ramsey Clark, for exanple, was having 

contact with Dr. King. The people at the National Park Service on whose 

land this was goin~ to be held were having contact with Dr. King. V~rious 

people were having contact 1V'ith him, and I think those contacts just 

continued uith the other people. 

F: Does the President take a direct hand in where something like that is 

going to be held. I'm talking about the physical side. We kno\v it's 

in Hash::_ngton, but Hhether it I S on the Elipse, or ,,,hether it's 0'1. r by 

the Reflecting Puol, or whether it r s right there on the lfuite Hou~e lmm, 

and so fort~. Does he leave that up to the controlling agencies there in 

Hashingto:l, or does he express himself fairly freely? 

T: He expre~ses l;,Jself freely. In this case, there weren't just a lot of 

alternatives. The discus~ ~ns as to the locatiG were held beb:~en the 

National Park Service people--and the one thing I remember is that 

Ramsey Clark was right in the middle of all of this--I do recall that--

partly because of his liberal credentials. He was well kno"t-JD to those 

that I'lere putting on the Resurrection City activity and ,vas respected 

and liked by then) so he Has a natural to be involved in it, aside :Erom 

his role as Attorney General and chief la,,7 enforcement officer. And 

there were discussion; there were discussions of other sites--discussions 

of other sites prior to l'!artin Luther King's death--aftcr his death. 

F: The President likes to sor~of stay on top of that situation. He didn't 

say to the Park Service, "Nash Castro, handle this," sort of thing and 

IIle t me knoH ,",hat you come up with." 

T: r:o, he never did that. He ~']QS a:-;are of the various considerations th.:tt 

went into it. And I recall Qt one time sitting in on a meeting with 

--j ~ . . ~ 
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Ramsey and the President in which other possible sites were discussed. 
Ramsey came over to discuss the site, Camp Wolters is a name that sticks 

a little bit in my mind as a site, and the problc~s relative to it. 

RamSf!Y dis cussed the various al ten':J.tives, ~vhat the problems were, 

,vhat the benefits Herc--that sort of thing, and, I think, Hith th.::: idea 

of trying to steer these pco?le Hho Here corning in a site that Has 

physically ab Ie to accommodate th~'m, and 'Ivhere the activi ty could be 

held "Jithout disturbing everything else that was going on around the City. 

O:';viously, the dE:cision lS made to hold it there without really knm·;ir'.g 

the iul] siz· of it. 

F: Along tl;~-,'c. line, Ramsey the President ha.s knm\'Ll since he Has Tom Clarkrs 

little ]," Ram:cy, also, becomes a real point of contention in the 

latter Ca~s of the Johnson Ad~inistration. Now did Johnson treat him 

more or less on the equivalent St2.tllS '1'lith all the other C:lbinet heads, 

or did he 3.1;;; :.; look on hi'n. as Tom CloJ.l.:~ 's little boy? 

T: No. He always treated him the way he treated all the other Cabinet 

people. Ran:sey is a pretty hard-headed fellow Hhenever he Hcnts to be. 

He did~lt think thut he Has dealing with one of his daddyts friends. He 

thought he was Attorney General of the United States dealing with the 

Preside"t of the United States, and acted accordingly, as did the President. 

F: Some of t~le criticism that the Pl.-esident received ~.,as because of Some 

of Rams~::y r s fee Ii [1;:;3 , particularly on this matter of gun controls and on 

the adl:C:):,~t:"Cln, yuu knm·], that you should show restraint in handling 

rioters ;.""',1 ceO on. Di d the Pl"esidcr:.t ever indic:ltc. his dissatisfaction 
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various things, hut he indicated irritation about me, but there ~vas ncv,;r 

any thou.ci1t I don't think of firing me. You know, there Here times that 

he indicated irrit~tion abou~ various people in the Administration, 

either in the Cabinet or out. 

F: You can r t get much beyond the level of "I wonder why old Ra.."llsey .vants 

to say that or do that" or something? 

T: Yes, that was the form it took. A lot of times herd say, "Oh, Goddamn 

Rumsey. NoiV why did he do that? That doesn r t make any sense. Wh~ ... 'lould 

he do that?'! Usually, I would have the opportunity to be the midt.:le man. 

He r d say, "Call R.?_rTIsey, and asl~ him why he d~ d so-·~d-so." 

You knm·} , LynJon Johnson has had a reputation for a long time of 

ge ing unh,;py wHh p80ple and calling them and really ci.:.!t'7ing them out. 

I nlst say I didn't experience th<-.t very much. He ah?ays ~vas nice to 

me, tr~:ated n2 with complete deference, even at times I kne'tv he 't.Jas un-

happy with me and he let me knO\'1 he w'as unhappy with me. As far as 

chastising me in public, in front of people, trying to embarrass me, 

that never happen2d. I noticed that with regard to the people he res-

pected, uhose judgment, Hhose ability, whose recormnendations that he 

respected, that he did the same thing ahvays. More than that, when he 

was irritated ,,7i th them, or unhappy wi th them, or uncertain as to why 

they did thinbs, instead of calling them directly, he would send an 

intermedial."Y. There '.Jer;' several times he ,-laS unhappy v7i th Ramsey about 

things) or curious to "'hy Ramsey made decisions, ard he Vlould say, "Call 

Racsey, and ask hiD Hhy he did so-and-so." 

F: Which, in a sense, miti2atcd the criticism intended because this was 

Larry Temple really calling Ramsy. 
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T: Right. If I called and said, "Ra:TI~~cy, the PrC!siul:nt sure docs appear 

to be unhappy about your staV~ment or about your decision, and he wonders 

what motivated it." Well, that's sort of a pleasant little inquiring 

comin;:,; from Larry Temple as opposed to the President of the United 

States sayin[, "Ny God, ,-lhy did you do A,B,C?" And there Here a J.ot of 

times the President Has irritated and unhappy '('7ith Rar''::;'~y. I "]Quld say 

it ~vould be a fair conclusion to say that during the year 1968 there· Here 

more occas .,ns Hhere the President was irrite!:ed ,..rith Ramsey than 

there "(;Ole occasions ,.,here he Has irritated with any other Cabinet officer. 

But I think that's pri~arily attributable to the fact that Ramsr was 

involved in marc things in 1968 than any other Cabinet officer. 

F: He ,.;ras, in some Hays, the most exposed officer outside of DC.n Ru::k. 

T: That~! s ri;;ht. He \·)'as hanelli: ,; the Court nomir~ tiors vis-à-vis the Congress. 

He ,vas HO'l.-ki~oJ on b'l.In legislation. He ,.;ras \.;ro~ \ing on other legislation. 

He 'Has \'lOd:ing on Resurre:ction City. He Has the guy ,.;rho instituted liti-

gation 2.g2.inst--anti-trust litigation. He Has the guy that instituted 

indictrr,cnts. So the fact thnt the President miz,ht have been irritated 

on more occasions Hith Ramsey than any other Cabinet officer doesn't 

really mean a Hhole lot. 

F: He was iilvolved in every bit of discontent. 

T: Right. Thut did happen quite frequently. But the President had no 

reticence about getting word to Ramscy in onc form or another that he 

l-laS unh.:J.PPY c:ith him; and Ramsey bad no reticence about defending his 

posi ti C~lS. 

T: No. I think there were occasions where the President made decision that 
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were contrary to RD.l'lSCY t s rccom:llcnda tions, but he made lots of decisions 

contrary to a lot of people r s rccolHr;-,endations. But as far as Ramsey doing 

something, a la Wirtz, and the president picking up the phone and 

saying, "Ramsey, you're wrong; backtrack; change that, If I don r t recall 

that happening. 

Nmv ~-lithout remembering any specifics, I do knmv there were occa-

sians Ylhere--. I do remember Some specifics. There were occasions yThere 

Ramsey would say, "NOIv, Mr. Prc.3ident, this is sm:-;-thing that I t-ltmtto 

recommend to you, and I think ,ole ought to do it a certain l-lay." The 

President ,,]QuId just say, "No, Rams(~y, I disagree. We're not going to do 

it that Hay." 

F : The y s a,v eyc- to-eye on gun can tro 1 ? 

T: y~s, saH eye-to-eye on things like Hiretapping, ,·,hich lO]~-S very, very 

important. The President had a d;'ep-seated feeling against wiretapping, 

against the invasiun of a guy's privacy. He thougllt that in earlier 

administrations that there Has ',vay too much wiretapping going on. Ramsey 

was the one who told the FEI that there was going to be a very limited 

amount, only in national security. He lveren rt just go in;::, to be ,viretapping 

to try to find criminals here, there, and yon. The President backed him 

up to the hilt, and I must say--not only is that my view, I think every-

body around the White House had that view--that if the government ever 

gets into an extensive amount of wiretapping, that they're going to really 

be invading privacy. 

F: Freedom control. 

T: Ri~llt. Th.:1t, _s not really the vic,-! of most of the professionals 3.'':' 

tlw FBI. They ,lere not happy \vitb this decision. I thinl: left to their 
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mm devices they Hould ho.vc .viret3.ppcd hlthor and yon. 

F: As £3.1' as you kno,·" did J. Edgar Hoover ever remonstrute on this to the 

President? 

T: Not to my knoHled8c·. I think he ,.]u.s a.!are of the Pres ident r s view abon:. 

it. 

F: Does the Attorney Ganer3.1, as far as you can tell, hold sort of a "lhip 

hand over the Fl,T--I'm thinking particularly of Director Hoover, who are 

nominally subordinate--but Hr. Hoover is an Am~rican instituti~n. 

T: Mr. Hoover never thought he was subordinate to that or any other Attorney 

F: 

General. I think  that was apparent. I think that was one of the areas 

in which Ramsey remained frustrated because Mr. Hoover, as you say, was 

and is a national institution, had much, much stroke in the Congress.

Ramsey did his best to ride herd over the FBI, but I'm not sure he ever 

thought that he was in full control of the situation. He was normally the 

head of the FBI. 

Of course, he had some authority because: in some areas the FBI needed 

his Signature approval to do things, like wiretapping. He wouldn't give 

that approval. When it needed his approval, or his permission to go to 

court and he declined it, that would cause unhappiness, it was clear over 

there. I didn't witness it firsthand, the relationship between all the 

Attorneys General and Hoover, but my guess is from what I saw and what I 

heard and what was told to me by some of the FBI people, is that Ramsey 

probably did a better job of trying to be a boss over Hoover than anybody 

that preceded him. I don't know about the successor. 

Did the President ever consider retiring Hoover so far as you know? 

T: r~o, not :::.:) t::.< (l:; I ];:.nOH. I el() knc;T,' that there W<lS a fellaH named Dcke 
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Galotch (?) (DeLoache?)--Cartha. His nickname that everybody called him was 

Deke who, I think, technically was the number three man over there, but 

"tve looked upon Deke being the number two man. All of our contact from the 

White House that went directly to the FJ3I--and there were some, not trying 
 

to get around Ramsey, but just trying to expedite things--our direct 

contact went to Deke. The President Has very high on Deke, liked Deke, 

had confidence in him. I think the thought 'tV'ent through the President l s 

mind that if Hoover ever decided to retire, that D('l~a might be a good one 

for that position. I als(' happen to knou that that "t·ms not Ramsey's 

view. 

I happen to kr:c·] iTom convcrs.:-,tions I had with him that Ramsey 't']Quld 

have preferred bringing somebody in from the outside to head up the FBI, 

anl not get a Hoover-trained man in that position. I noted with interest 

in the paper in the last week that Deke has retired from the FBI, and the 

speculative stories are that President Nixon has the view that whoever 

succeeds Hoover ought to come from outside, and Deke sees there's no future 

for him, and is leaving. Whether that's true or not, I obviously don't 

know. But the relationship between the White House and the FBI, I thought 

was really pretty good. 

F: Were you involved in the concern around the assassination of Robert Kennedy? 

T: Yes. Sort of surprising. It seemed to me it may have been about b'lO or 

tv70-thirty in the morning in Washington, I got a call from the Secret 

Sqrvice m~n, and said--

F: Local CQll? 

T: Yes, from the mlitc Hous(; s'i.;ritchboanl. [He] said, "Larry, I jus t gC)t -';-lOrd 

tlla t Senator Robert Kennedy has been shot in California, and I don t"'; ·kn::.:·.' 
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what t,) do about it. Should I call the Prcsidl!nt?" 

I said, "Oh, good God, yes! How seriously shot?" 

He said, "We don't know. We haven't gotten word on that. We just 

knoH that he has been shot and is in the hospital, and I Has reticent to 

call the President. I ,.]anted to call and ask you Hhat to do." 

I said, "I don f t have any que, tion about it--call the President and 

tell him~' 

Well, apparently while he was calling me to ask mc about it, the 

Situat:on Roo:,,; had called t'lalt RostOVl and had told Halt about it. Then 

Halt called the President and told him. By th~_ timc the Secret ger'J'ice 

man called the President, the President already Icnei.J. I rerr.€:nber that for 

SO:'0,2 s tr2.nge rea:·on--

F: You had gone back to bed? 

T: Well, laid there for a minute not really knowing what to think or what 

to do, and about thirty minutes later my wife got up and turned on the,! 

television at three or three-thirty or four or whatevcr time it was in the 

morning. Surprisingly, television was on. Why she thought to get up and 

turn on the television I don't know. I must say that thought wouldn't 

have crossed my mind. I might have thought to get up and turn on the radio 

for an all-night news program, but it was on, and I remember that we 

'tvatchcd it: and that for the rest of the night: there were just constant 

ne,-lS reports abOl:t Dobby Kennedy. 

Then the next morning ,\T~:en I got to the Hhi te House, a lot had been 

done h'i t:1C ?rcsiclent. The Prcsic:ont apparently had been up most of the 

nigll t. ;]:1C: 0 f the things he clid, IIi thout technical legal authority at 

that r'~", ' .. :a:.; to Q.o;si;,,'11 Secret Service protcction--
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F: I \·ms going to ask Hhose initi::!.:i vc that ,ms? 

T: That Has the l'reSi(~,;\t' s. To .::'..11 tlte candoL(latcs. He decided that th;;.t 

was sOr.1ething that \·J,S imperative; that if somebody 'vas going to criti-

cize him or gc, .Lng to fauJ.t him for it, he Has \\Tilling to accept that. 

34 

He thought that he still was the Chi(:f Executive of that government, an(~'-

F: He Houldn t t i-l:t. t for the legalities, he t d take care of the necessities? 

T: Exac tly. So by the time t; ~~ sun COl"71e up, he had given the orders and the 

instructions. The Secre t S~:rvice, i\Thich didn I t have just an abundan,:c~ 

of people, had already started getting its people around to the various 

candidates. Obviously, tha Vice President had Secret Service protection 

as Vice President. But you had McCarthy and you had Mr. Nixon, you had 

va::ioud peo c. 

I rcc;c),1 that phen I got there the nex' n:orning to dE, bedroo:::. that--. 

At this pain: of couJ:"se Senator K •. nedy had not yet died. He ,-las still 

ali ve technL..: ally, although by this point we had gotten Hard that he Has 

unconscious, would probably not regnin consciou~nes_ even if he lived. 

The odds Here that he ,·Jould not regain consciousness; that he might be in 

an alive state for Heeks or months or some period of time, but probably 

would never regain consciousness. There 't-las not a lot that the President 

could do to help h~n. 

There Has a great concern on his part about the proportions of 

violence in this country, not jus t the s1-o .Jting of Bohby Kennedy--although 

that \-.Tas the: catalyst that gave ri';e to Some action--but closely on the 

heels of ~'lartin Luther King as well as the various o'-~ler things that ~,:cre 

going on ill the country. I rCi:ll:rl' )("!r ~·;hen I got there at the Hllite House, 

he had been l~p, ll.J.u been talki:'.::; \-!ith pcople--started talking to 1::8 about 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



35 

lc~islation that would give Secret Service protcctien to the various 

candidates. DeVicr Pierson--he called, and he asb~d D2Vier and me to do 

some work on legislation. DeVier started contactip~) as I recall, Joe 

Barr, Hho Has then Under Secretary of the Tre.:lsury, and started "lwrking 

with him on legislation. The President had talked to Speaker HcCormack, 

had talked to Gerald Ford, had talked to Senator Hansfield and Senator 

Dirksen, and it was fairly apparent that things Here: greased to get this 

legislation through. There ,vasCl't going to be a Hhole lot of argtl17'.ent 

about it. You'll recall that there ,laS some decis ion as to ho':-, far this 

legislation ,wuld go. Hho ,wuld you give Secret Service protection? 

Hoy] about Harold Stassen? Are you goin;:; to give protection--? 

F: Somebody from thQ Prohibition party. 

T: That r s right. So the decision ,-,as fairly quickly fl'ade that the Hajo!."'i:-:,-

and Minority Leaders in the House and the Majority and Minority Leaders 

in the Sepate, plus a fifth mem~er to be selected by th8m, would be the 

five mail selection cOiJ1.mittee to determine ",ho Hould get Secret Service 

protection. Tom Clark, myoId friend, becnEc the fifth DeElber of that 

committe.. at 2. lat.er point. 

In any event while Bobby Kennedy was lying in a hospital dying in 

California, the ",heels of governw2n t "ere moving very r'aPidly to try to 

preven~ this sort of thing from reoccurring, and to try to get the 

Secret Sc:rvice. protection to the various candidates. That vas forthconing 

very quickly. In the meantime, as I said, the President had assigned 

these people, and announced that he had made that decision. There 

He did" r t sa", 
~ , "I do no:: 

LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh



36 

have th~~ ac:1!o::ity to do tllis, but I'rn doing it--" 

F: He got no real l~ickhC1.ck on that? 

T: None uhatsocver. And I think those that gave any thought to it instinc-

tively thought that that ,·ms the correct decision to make. The legisla-

t ion, as you kno~,', Has forthcoming very quickly. 

During the time of Bobby Kennedy's being in the hospital and in the 

proccss of dying, the Presidcnt Has giving thought to this \o]ho1e problem 

of violence in this country. There ,-las discussion about creating a 

commission. The President had a good deal of reticence about that. He 

said, "You can't just create conmissions. Commissions don't really 

solve problems. So you have a commission. What does it do?" Then he would 

argue uith hiDself. Hefs the grcatest devil's advocate I've ever seen 

becaLi.'·., invaric~hly he ~youid take the contr~-xy position to anybody ~·jho 

would have n vie",. A lot of tin~es people ,",ould express vievlS to him and 

he'd just say, r~';ell, that's foolh.:::.rdy. You're wrong about thctt"" And 

really become an advocate uith then and dispute them and argue ~vith thcm--

,vhen in f~::t he <lgreed Hith them, and he was trying to test the validit:; 

of their position. 

F: People, with good motives perhaps, but without any involvement in the 

complexities of a problem---I think they've charged this on every President, 

I knou they did on Johnson, they say, "Oh, God, Johnson has named 

another comrnissi(l~·) or another cor."'CiCittee to look into this." Has he 

sensitive to th2t? 

T: Very sensitive. r nsitive not only to th~t criticism, but to the accuracy 

of that criticis;,. Th<2t uas the r(:~son there w~s this problem of the 

decision, the sort-of arguing back and forth in his own mind as to whether 
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this was the thing to do. Obviollsly, ultimately he made that decision; 

and ultimately appoint;:.d that Con:- i_s8io" on Violence. 

F: Any particular reason why he chose Eisenhoucr--Hilton? 

T: I think he chose Hilton Eisenhm-Jcc because he wanted a respected leader 

who \-laS knoHn and would be respected by everybody. He thought Ei~enho·Her 

fit that category. 

F: And who would not be associated probably with politics? 

T: Right. Obviously there Here politicians on there. There were political 

people on there. 
, 

There Here people like Terrence Cook, the Archbishop 
t 

of Ne\v York, on there, ..,hom the President had met not too much before 

th'·.t and thought very highly of. 

F: Roman Hruska? 

T: That's right, Sen~tor Hruska. 

F: And CongressDan HcCullol_!gh, I remer.,iJer. 

T: Right. The President--. It's k~nd of interesting hm-~ he decided these. 

things. He never told me this, but I got the impression that he put 

Senator Hruska on thC're, for example, bec.;:use Hruska '-las an opponent of 

gun control legislation. He thought that gun control legislation really 

was imperative follm-ling Maxtin Luther King's assassination and Bobby 

Kennedy 1 S assassination. He thought this country really needcr' some type 

of gun control legislation. He had his vieHs as to Hhat type we ought 

to have, but in any event "le ought to have S07r!e. Hruska .. :as an opponent 

of that. I thinlc that the President put Hruska on there "lith the! idea 

and maybe the conversion of Hruska would be the impetus 

to gC'tti.:'g ZlJn control IC!gisli:;.ti.on. I think that I::. the reason Hrltsl~a 

"'.l.s on t::,~:r\'. If ][ru",l~.:l hCL,l. ne::',':l:' LJC(~'. involved in the gun contl"ol fi~ht, 
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maybe another Senator would have been put on. I don't know that the 

PrCE".; dent \-las succ, __ ,sful, if that ~J.:J.S his viet", and he never told me that 

was his vic']. That's only my analysis of it. 

F: Did he ever discuss operating philosophy on something like that. You 

know, give you little handbooks on "how to" handle certain probleQs? 

T: Not really. Not in the sense of IILet me tell you" lecture, sort of thing. 

I think that he did some things like that visibly with the idea that if 

you ,Jere smart enough to understand \'l:nt Has going on, you could see "lhat 

,.;as going on. By that, I don't mean to sugg.:::st that I was smart en(.'ugh 

that I sa,v that one, but that rea.lly was my vie\v about Hruska. But th':! 

President usually just did things. He would disc~ss part of the reasons 

for doing ther1 • But if he had deep down in hI. mind that he was going 

to accomplish some intended purpo~' by a particular ac~.-;_on, he would •. ' t 

always articulate that to everybody around. He didn't think he was a 

professor teaching students. He thought he was a man who was acting. 

Recognizing that you're a professor, I don't mean that derogatorily, 

but he just didn't feel that as a responsibility. 

F: You're supposed to learn by doing. 

T: Right. 

F: Did he really hold forth much hope for the commission? 

T: He did uhen he finally madr the decision to do it. As I say, he grappled 

wi th that one for--not an extended length of time because it ,vas announced 

really at the time of Senator Kennedy's death. But it Has a hard 

grappling for hours as OppG :,::d to days. But he held great hope once he 

made that decision that it would come up with something. 

F: \!as h~ a'(o];tre that it prohnb ly I-lould not r'l>ort until after he had gone out 

of office? 
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T: Yes. I think that he thought that maybe there ~.,ould bc SO!110. interim 

reports that might be helpful. But hl..~ kIw,., that from June--n.s I recall, 

it was June--unt:il January Hi'lS a relatively short period of time, and that 

most of what they could come up ~"ith quickly ,,]QuId J!c pretty superficial. 

He ,.,asn' t sUGgesting just putting together a cer..r:~i5Eion and then tor.,ebody 

at the \\T'hitc House \'lritc a report for them to deliver. 

F: For instanc" on this one, you get Lloyd Cutler as your executive director. 

Cutler has Lcen in and out of government service and is knmm. Does 

Eisenkn'ler cheose him? Does the President choose· him? r>lho gets hold 

of Lloyd Cutler on something like this and de:::::ides this is thc man \vho 

can operate the day-to-day work of this commission? 

T: Well, I can tell :-'.lU in this particular instance the dO~_'cision on Lloyd 

Cutler was the President's. How the idea carns to him, I'm not real 

sure. But I think that the President knew for this commission to be 

succeDsful there \.lOuld have to be un activist executive for the commission 

Hho kneel and understood the o~·erations of governr;lent, 1Vho Has a bright 

talented guy, t'7ho understood governr::ent and the Hay it operated. Cutler 

fit that hill. Hhen I say the decision was the President's, I think as 

a practical matter that is right. 1·;rhat the President did was that--

F: He recolTUr,ends. 

T: He recorrm:ended and got word to the con-mission that Cutler ,V'Ould be a 

good one. Cutler wasn't seeking the job. That's not any job a fellou 

'\olOuld seck voluntarily. I knDl-l the Prcsident--tILccough ~oe Califugo , as 

I rccall--~ot wocd to the ccr~i3sion that Cutler prob;ibly would be 

available and in his judgment would be a good man for the job. He didn't 

lmve a:j~/ i;lsi.stcr:c(C tl);lt the:y h0.vc: C.utler. I think if the co: .. mlssi"n l1.J.cl 
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had someone they thought was better, the President would have clearly 

acceded to their judgment on it. 

F: "This is a man you might want to use." 

T: Right. 

F: Did you get there in time to observe the President r s re lationship ,-lith 
., 

President Eisenhmver? 

T: Yes. I saw him with President-Eisenhower on several occasions, all of 

which ~vere amazingly, amazingly harmonia;.' --like aJO brothers 'tJho--

F: Were they warm? I know the problem of abstractions and adjectives, 

but what is the dcgree of the relationship as you would describe it? 

T: Just almost like brothers who had been through a battle together. I 

think maybe the Presidency must bring individuals together that might 

not otherwise be there. 

40 

F: It's almost like being an astronaut. There are not very many people you 

can tn!.' to about it. 

T: The- 's right. I think, Joe, for example, that relationship had its 

genesis earlier than Lyndon Johnson r s Pres;.dency. Obviously, during the 

'50's they "lOrked closely togc~ther) but--without knOt'ring and without 

having seen--I iV'ould not think that they were as close personally during 

the '50 r s as they beca..-ne after Lyndon Johnson ascended to the Presidency. 

I remember that He went to Eisenhm"er' s place in Palm Springs, California 

going to or coming back from somellhere. One of the Ha'tntii trips. I 

remember it backed on to the golf course. I remember this very vividly. 

Oh, I guess it Has one of the trips HIe re we had gone off the coast of 

San Diego to one of the carriers to visit "7ith one of the carriers, 

maybe on Veterans Day or somcL:ling. But I rem.:.:mber that He got on a 
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helicopter. I guess what we did is we flew on a helicopter really from 

the carrier right to Palm Springs. I don't guess we took Air Force 

One and then switched to a helicopter. But we got there and President 

Eisenhower get us. I remember the President introduced me to President 

Eisenhower as a "fellow you'll like. He's a Texan," was the sort of 

introduction. Eisenhower didn't pay much attention to me, as he didn't 

pay much attention to anybody but the President. The President was his 

guest. But I remember really how warm their relationship was, and they 

went in and the President had lunch with President Eisenhower and Mrs. 

Eisenhower, as I recall. 

F: Now President Johnson is a great flesh presser and hugger and so forth; 

[with] .somebody like Eisenhower, is it a good hardy handshake, or is 

there a laying on of hands? 
T: A good hearty handshake, and I recall on this particular occasion Presi-

dent Eisenhower put his arm around the President as they started walking 

tmvard the house, not for the show of the photographers. I think they 

had even forgotten. The photographers had been there and had gotten photo~rarhers  

their pictures, and really were in the process of leaving. Whether one 

of them got the picture or not is insignificant. They had lunch and 

President Johnson wanted to brief President Eisenhower as to what was 

happening with regard to the Vietnam War. He always sought President 

Eisenhower's counsel and support. And he wanted Eisenhower to know 

what was happening. 

41 

F: Did Eisenhower--as far as you know, did he talk in generalities or did he 

get specific? 

T: Tl,· time.'; I 5.0.'::--1 \·72..S not in on the meetings. There '\-7as .1. later meetin;; 
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Hhc.:rc EiGc.:nhoHer came ancI h<1.d bre(!.kfa~; t ,.;oith President Johns(~\l on Air 

Force O''-C, ;: \'lere on our "lay to or fre: IIm·mii to TI:cet President Thieu 

of South Vietnam. But most of the time, f~cOEl \'ILlt I \Vas able to observe 

wi thout being in on the meeting, Eisenhm"er fairly much just listened 

and then said, "I think you're doing right~ Mr. President. You have 

my s 

President Johnson ivaS always ~vont to quote ,·,hat President Eisenhoh"cr 

had said to him once, and that is that ''hThen it comes to domestic affairs, 

I am a mean partisan Republican ,·'1;0 'Hill oppose you. But when it comes 

to foreign :i ::fairs, you're my President ar:.:! I Hill do ,,,hat you say, and 

you have my support." President Johnson used to ahmys go on and say, 

"Nm'l, he's not a mean partisan Republican. He just said that." He 

like to tell that story, and I've heard that story several times. I 

mlsn't there .,]hen President Eisenhouer said that, but I think that 

probably did epitoi'1.ize ,vhat Eiscnhmver thought his vie,.., and position 

,vas. But I thought their relationship lias very good;, and from all visible 

appearances, very warm. 

--- 7~" 

. C6PV LIlt UlJfw<vl , 
---;ti 

\" ~ 
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Gift of Personal Statement 
• 

By ~~TTy Tc.~m+'Q~l~e~_________ ... 
to the 

Lyndon Baines Johnson Library 

In accordance with Sec. 507 of the Federal Property and Adminis-
trative Services Act of 1949, as amended (1~4 U.S.C. 397) and regulations 
issued thereunder (41 CFR 101-10), I, ,"hereinafter 
referred to as the donor, hereby give, donate, and convey to the United 
States of America for eventual deposit in the proposed Lyndon Baines 
Johnson Library, and for administration therein by the authorities 
th~reof, a tape and transcript of a personal statement approved by me 
,.nd prepared for the purpose of deposit in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. The gift of this material is made subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 

1. Title to the material transferred hereunder, and all literary 
property rights, will pass to the United States as of the date of the 
delivery of this material into the physical custody of the Archivist 
of the United States. 

2. It is the donor's wish to make the material donated to the 
United States of fu~erica by terms of this instrument available for 
research as soon as it has been deposited in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. 

3. A revision of this stipulation governing access to the material 
for research may be entered into between the donor and the Archivist of 
the United States, or his designee, if it appears desirable. 

4. The material donated to the United States pursuant to the fore-
going shall be kept intact permanently in the Lyndon Baines Johnson 
Library. ~ 
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